
Vale of White Horse District Council
Climate Emergency Advisory Committee agenda - Monday, 1 June 2020

Page 1

Agenda
Contact: Candida Mckelvey, Democratic Services
Telephone: 01235 422520
Email: candida.mckelvey@southandvale.gov.uk
Date: 21st May 2020
Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A meeting of the 
Climate Emergency Advisory Committee
will be held on Monday, 1 June 2020 at 6.00 pm 

Members of the Committee:
Councillors

David Grant (Committee Chair), 
Amos Duveen (Vice Chair)
Eric Batts
Eric De La Harpe
Hayleigh Gascoigne
Alison Jenner
Max Thompson

Substitute Members

Ron Batstone
Nathan Boyd
Andy Foulsham
Simon Howell
Bob Johnston
Robert Maddison
Sarah Medley
Mike Pighills
Elaine Ware

Joining instructions for members of the public: To watch the virtual meeting, you 
must copy the following link to your internet browser:  

https://tinyurl.com/y7zh6zzc

When your web browser opens, select “Watch on the Web instead” button and then when 
the “Welcome to the live event!” window opens select “join anonymously”.

mailto:candida.mckelvey@southandvale.gov.uk
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council
Climate Emergency Advisory Committee agenda - Monday, 1 June 2020

Page 2

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read.  For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the 
officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting.

Margaret Reed
Head of Legal and Democratic



Vale of White Horse District Council
Climate Emergency Advisory Committee agenda - Monday, 1 June 2020

Page 3

Agenda
Open to the Public including the Press

1. Chairman's announcements 
 
To receive any announcements from the chairman and general housekeeping matters.

2. Apologies for absence 
 
To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.

3. Minutes 
(Pages 5 - 9) 
 
To review the minutes of the previous meeting, and for the chairman to sign them as an agreed 
record.

4. Declarations of interest 
 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on the agenda for 
this meeting.

5. Urgent business 
 
To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be considered as 
urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters urgent.

6. 'Determining the Vale of White Horse District Carbon Baseline' 
 
A presentation by Aether on the district baseline work they have carried out for Vale of White Horse 
District Council.

7. Work programme update and the impact of the Covid-19 response 
on progress. 

(Pages 10 - 22) 
 
Committee to receive a report that provides an update on the status of the Climate Emergency 
Work Programme since the most recent Climate Emergency Advisory Committee meeting on 28 
January 2020 in the context of COVID-19.

8. Public participation 
 
 
To consider any statements from members of the public who have submitted a written 
statement in advance of the meeting.  



Vale of White Horse District Council
Climate Emergency Advisory Committee agenda - Monday, 1 June 2020

Page 4



Vale of White Horse District Council – Climate Emergency Advisory Committee minutes 
Tuesday, 28 January 2020

Minutes
of a meeting of the
Climate Emergency 
Advisory Committee
held on Tuesday, 28 January 2020 at 7.00 pm
at the Meeting Room 1, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Milton, OX14 4SB 

Open to the public, including the press

Present: 

Members: Councillors David Grant (Chair), Amos Duveen (Vice-Chair), Eric Batts, Eric De 
La Harpe, Hayleigh Gascoigne, Alison Jenner, Max Thompson

Officers: John Backley, Paul Bateman, Chloe Bunting, Michael Flowers, Liz Hayden, 
Heather Saunders, Michelle Wells 

Also present: Councillor Jenny Hannaby

Number of members of the public: 26

9. Chairman's announcements 

The chairman outlined the emergency evacuation arrangements and the procedure for the 
meeting.

The chairman explained to the committee the progress made since the previous meeting by 
the task and finish group. Three key areas were identified as the prioritisation of work going 
forward, the collaboration with South Oxfordshire District Council, and through collaboration 
with the wider public.

10. Apologies for absence 

None.

11. Minutes of previous meeting 

RESOLVED: to approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 15 October 
2019 and agree that the chairman signs them as such.

12. Declarations of interest 

None.

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Vale of White Horse District Council – Climate Emergency Advisory Committee minutes 
Tuesday, 28 January 2020

13. Urgent business 

None.

14. Public speakers 

Due to the number of speakers registered to speak, the Committee agreed to allow each 
speaker to receive their full 3-minute allocation and to extend the speakers’ session to 
facilitate this.

The committee heard seven speakers on the following matters:

1) Kevin Middleton: Planning measures for reducing carbon emissions from housing for 
existing and new-build housing, and the possible encouragement of solar panel inclusion as 
part of initiatives to improve the local community and environment.

2) Mike Landy: Tree planting as an effective method to reduce carbon emissions and the 
setting of agreed targets for total tree cover for the district.

3) Tracey Jesson: The purchase of woodland and country park space for community benefit, 
methods to prevent vegetative waste being destroyed in non-environmentally beneficial 
ways, and the introduction of electric buses to facilitate greener public transportation. 

4) Guy Wilkin: Lack of cycling space currently available and the consideration of making 
cycling space a mandatory part of the local plans in the future.

5) John Broad: Motor cycling as a method to reduce the take-up of road space, congestion, 
and pollution on roads and methods to encourage this transition for vehicle users in the 
local area.

6) Phillip Swan: The encouragement of public transport and walking instead of non-private 
vehicle transport in towns. 

7) David Marsh: Development of new housing in Harwell and ensuring the new-build 
properties are built to a high environmental standard to set an example in the county.

15. Oxfordshire Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Steering Group 

The chair introduced the proposal by Oxfordshire County Council to develop an Oxfordshire 
Electric Vehicles Infrastructure Strategy to establish principles and an action plan to deliver 
the charging infrastructure needed to support the transition to low emission vehicles in the 
country. Oxfordshire County Council had invited Vale of White Horse District Council to 
appoint a councillor to the Oxfordshire Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Group.

The committee asked when the group would meet and time of day the meetings would take 
place. The Insight and Policy Manager explained that while the exact timings could not be 
confirmed currently, it is anticipated Oxfordshire County Council would aim to work around 
the availability of members where possible.

A motion, proposed and seconded, was passed, to appoint Councillor David Grant to the 
Oxfordshire Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Group with Councillor Amos Duveen as 
substitute.

RESOLVED: to appoint Councillor David Grant to the Oxfordshire Electric Vehicle 
Infrastructure Group with Councillor Amos Duveen as substitute.

Page 6



Vale of White Horse District Council – Climate Emergency Advisory Committee minutes 
Tuesday, 28 January 2020

16. Climate Emergency -Year One Work Programme 

The committee was informed by Councillor Eric De La Harpe on the actions the task and 
finish group had undertaken as part of the work programme.

The committee were informed that the task and finish group had split the initiatives into four 
categories based on the following criteria:

a.) Items easy to deliver and had a high impact
b.) Items easy to deliver and had a low impact
c.) Items hard to deliver and had a high impact
d.) Items hard to deliver and had a low impact

The group agreed that priority would be given to items that were easy to deliver and had 
high impacts. These were based on a variety of factors including carbon savings, 
implementation measures, costs, and resources required. The committee was provided with 
a table in the report which listed the list of actions/items which were prioritised by the task 
and finish group and therefore put forward to be included in the proposed one-year work 
programme 

Councillors were keen to ensure members of the public were aware that the new council 
offices in Crowmarsh Gifford would be solely owned by South Oxfordshire District Council, 
with the Vale of White Horse paying rental fees to use the site. Councillors were however 
invited to be part of the planning process by South Oxfordshire District Council and would 
therefore be forwarding proposals to ensure the new building would be as environmentally 
friendly as possible.

The committee discussed the costs associated with each project in the proposed one-year 
work programme, they noted that for some of the projects, the costs given were initial 
feasibility study fees and that there could be additional resource implications further down 
the line. The Insight and Policy Manager also reiterated upon request the difference 
between the internal and external fees described within the report.

An area of concern raised was the wording of the action regarding ‘promotion of’ low carbon 
(plant based) diets in Council operations. The committee considered that it was not 
appropriate to suggest to individuals the type of foods they should be eating and agreed 
that the word ‘promotion’ should be edited to reflect a more nuanced stance. The Insight 
and Policy Manager confirmed that the wording could be edited to reflect this view and then 
presented to Cabinet for approval.

A question was raised asking for clarification on the composition of the cost figure included 
for the climate change lead position. The Insight and Policy and Insight Manager confirmed 
this was the proposed salary based on research of similar roles and the presented cost 
included a standard additional 25% to cover on-costs including pension and national 
insurance contributions.

A motion, proposed and seconded, was passed, to approve all priority one options in the 
year one work programme, subject to wording amendment for the action “Promotion of low 
carbon (plant based) diets within council operations, facilities and buildings and associated 
action plan”.

Page 7



Vale of White Horse District Council – Climate Emergency Advisory Committee minutes 
Tuesday, 28 January 2020

RESOLVED: to recommend to Cabinet the year-one climate emergency work programme 
(subject to amendment of wording for the low carbon diet action), for their implementation 
and adoption, including the proposed additional measures in the budget for 2020/21 

17. Communications and Engagement update 

The Insight and Policy officer provided a verbal update on the progress of the 
communication and engagement with town councils, parish councils, and community 
groups in the Vale. The officer highlighted that sixty-eight parishes in the Vale of White 
Horse had received a letter from the Committee outlining the climate emergency targets 
adopted by the Vale and the role of the Climate Emergency Advisory Committee. Parish 
councils were reminded in the letter that public attendance was welcomed at these 
meetings and of the opportunity to register to speak and address the committee. The letter 
also invited parish councils to tell the Council what activities they are doing, or projects they 
are starting and empathised that their views on options for working in partnership with them 
to support this important and critical agenda, were welcomed.

A letter was also sent to thirty local environment groups active in the Vale. The officer and 
the committee were keen to capture ideas from residents on their ideas of how to 
collaboratively tackle climate change and engage further in discussion.

The update also shared the ‘business as usual’ activity going on in this area, including 
regular councilor and staff communications and website updates. 

The opportunity had also been taken to promote the councils’ climate committees to all 
residents as part of a flyer which goes out with council tax bills in March 

Councillors asked whether this flyer would be posted electronically or in hard copy. The 
officer confirmed that the residents would receive the leaflet with their council tax bill for 
2020/21.

18. Forward Programme for the Committee 

The chair invited any questions from the committee regarding the forward programme.

Councillors asked whether the meeting dates included in the calendar of meetings were 
draft and if times were fixed. The democratic services officer confirmed that dates were 
drafts and could be adjusted to meet the needs of councillors. The officer also clarified that 
future dates were being arranged.

19. Exclusion of the public 

To exclude members of the press and public from the meeting for the following item of 
business under Part 1 of Schedule 12A Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 
and as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006 
on the grounds that:
 
(i)        it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1-7 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and
 
(ii)       the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information. 

Page 8



Vale of White Horse District Council – Climate Emergency Advisory Committee minutes 
Tuesday, 28 January 2020

The meeting was adjourned for a five-minute break period before the commencement of the 
next item.

20. Car park fees and charges for 2020 

The committee made recommendations to Cabinet on the car park fees and charges.

The meeting closed at 9.47 pm

Page 9



1

Climate Emergency Advisory 
Committee

Report of Acting Deputy Chief Executive – Transformation and Operations 
Author: Michelle Wells
Telephone: 01235 422648
E-mail: michelle.wells@southandvale.gov.uk 
Cabinet member responsible: Debby Hallett
E-mail: debby.hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
To: Climate Emergency Advisory Committee
DATE: 01 June 2020 

Climate Emergency Work Programme 
update 

Recommendation(s)

(a) Committee to note the progress on the Climate Emergency Year One Work 
Programme with consideration to the context of COVID-19 and its impacts on the 
progression and steer of this programme.

Purpose of Report

1. This report provides an update on the Climate Emergency Work Programme since 
the most recent Climate Emergency Advisory Committee meeting on 28 January 
2020.

Strategic Objectives 

2. Work is currently being undertaken to develop the Corporate Plan 2020-2024 and
update priorities, which provides an opportunity to embed climate emergency
related goals. Climate change and the environment are already emerging as strong 
priorities in the initial draft for the Corporate Plan 2020-24; however, this has 
currently been delayed due to Covid-19. It is still considered appropriate to 
continue to progress the Climate Emergency Year One Work Programme, as a 
sensible response to the emerging priorities in the Corporate Plan 2020-2024, 
acknowledging some projects may be delayed, re-focused or re-prioritised. 

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 10

Agenda Item 7

mailto:michelle.wells@southandvale.gov.uk


2

Background

3. The most recent meeting of the Vale of White Horse Climate Emergency Advisory 
Committee (CEAC) took place on 28 January 2020. The agenda for the CEAC 
meeting on 28 January included the proposed Climate Emergency Year One Work 
Programme for recommendation to Cabinet.  

4. At their February meeting, Vale Cabinet approved the year one work programme 
and additional budget request proposed by the CEAC. The programme will begin 
to tackle climate change and provide a strong foundation towards the adopted 
carbon neutral targets. The programme included an additional budget request of 
£51,335.13 for 20/21 to support delivery and to resource the programme with a 
Climate Change Lead. 

5. The subsequent Climate Emergency Advisory Committee (CEAC) scheduled for 
30 March 2020 was cancelled due to the Covid-19 outbreak. Since 23 March 2020, 
a number of council staff have taken up volunteer roles within the Covid-19 
Community Hub for Vale of White Horse including key officers who were previously 
focussed on the creation of the Climate Emergency Year One Work Programme. 
This has led to limited resource and capacity across the whole council to further 
this area of work.  

6. Officers in the Insight and Policy team held two internal meetings on 4 and 18 
March to review the agreed one-year work programme and prepare a provisional 
timetable for project delivery. The provisional timeline, prepared before the 
coronavirus outbreak, is noted in the table below.  

7. National statistics and reports have shown that the Covid-19 lockdown has 
subsequently cut carbon emissions across the UK. Officers will continue to monitor 
this and work closely with partner organisations to harness this trend and review 
the opportunities to boost low-carbon businesses through the development of 
economic recovery plans. The council will also seek opportunities to support safe 
walking and cycling and improve air quality; walking and cycling are forms of 
transport which have been further encouraged by the Government as part of their 
Covid-19 response. These issues are likely to impact on the work programme set 
out below. 

Page 11



3

Work programme review

8.  Updates on projects in the Climate Emergency Work Programme are given below.

Project Progress Budget Original
Proposed 
Timeline 
(March 
2020)

Status

Items postponed from March Climate Emergency Advisory Committee

1 Define the scope of carbon emissions 
across the District to be included in the 
Climate Emergency target.
Establish a baseline of district wide 
energy consumption and CO2e 
emissions

Aether have completed a report reviewing the potential 
scope of emissions to be included within our district wide 
target. 
Aether’s methodology and recommendations are 
summarised in a presentation, which was due to be 
presented to the CEAC on 30 March. The presentation 
also includes draft baseline data based upon the 
recommended scope.
The scope of emissions requires input from the CEAC, 
and this piece of work is still outstanding however forms 
part of the agenda for the virtual Vale CEAC meeting on 
01 June 2020.  

2019/20 
budget

March/ April 
2020

In progress

Completed reports

2 Vale of White Horse Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions report 2018/19

The Greenhouse Gas Emissions report for the Vale of 
White Horse District Council 2018/19 has been 
completed and uploaded onto the council’s website. 
This report would normally be published in August each 
year. This is the first year that the Insight and Policy 
Service have taken over responsibility for this work, and it 
has taken more time than usual to finalise and check data 
and review the report.

Existing 
resources

n/a Completed

P
age 12



4

Project Progress Budget Original
Proposed 
Timeline 
(March 
2020)

Status

3 Baseline review of council energy 
consumption and CO2e emissions

Concept Energy have completed a review of the council’s 
Carbon Footprint Data Collection Processes and 
submitted a report. The main conclusion is that our 
system of compiling energy data is unfortunately not 
sufficiently robust now we are looking to increase and 
enhance the monitoring of this data in light of the Climate 
Emergency. 

A key issue to be addressed is the establishment of an 
audit trail, especially when we are receiving data from 
contractors, when meter readings are taken and when 
units are converted.
Insight and Policy will prepare an action plan to take this 
forward.

2019/20 
budget

March/April 
2020

In progress

4 Heating options appraisal for Faringdon 
Leisure Centre

The gas boilers in the Faringdon Leisure Centre dry side 
are in urgent need of replacement, hence this project has 
been initiated in advance of the main review of the 
council estate in line with our intention to identify 
opportunities for renewable energy in council buildings.

A report has been received from Concept Energy and is 
currently being reviewed by the Leisure Team. 

£1,850 April 2020 In progress

New Projects

P
age 13



5

Project Progress Budget Original
Proposed 
Timeline 
(March 
2020)

Status

5 Oxfordshire Tree Mapping project The council will be participating in a project to produce a 
tree-planting opportunities map for the County. The ‘Tree 
Opportunity Map’ will show where tree cover might be 
increased, assessing a range of current land uses and 
habitats such as existing woodland, arable and 
pastureland or parks and golf courses. This map can then 
be used as a basis for the formation of policy and 
strategy, and to guide individual plantings. In order to 
ensure that the recommendations of the map are as 
widely adopted as possible, a wide range of groups will 
be engaged in its formation. 

The Tree Mapping project is led by a management group 
including Oxfordshire County Council, the Trust for 
Oxfordshire’s Environment (TOE), Nicholson’s Foresters, 
Oxford University Environmental Change Institute and 
Oxford Friends of the Earth and is also supported by 
Cherwell and Oxford City Councils.

£1,000 Project due 
to 
commence 
June 2020 
and be 
completed by 
December 
2020

In progress, 
(however 
timescale 
may be 
impacted by 
Covid-19 
response)

P
age 14



6

Project Progress Budget Original
Proposed 
Timeline 
(March 
2020)

Status

6 Identify opportunities to invest in solar 
energy off site

This project will review opportunities to invest in solar 
energy offsite in Oxfordshire and produce a business 
case. The aim of this work would be to generate 
renewable electricity that could then be matched to the 
council’s electricity demand through a commercial Power 
Purchase Agreement, reducing our carbon emissions. 
This is also a revenue generation opportunity for the 
council.

The project specification has been finalised and reviewed 
by the Procurement and Legal teams. A quotation to 
deliver this work has been received from the Low Carbon 
Hub. We aim to complete project sign off as soon as 
possible. Timescale of sign-off is dependent on key 
officer capacity and pending advice from Legal on the 
appropriate level of authorised sign-off.

£2,500 April/May 
2020

In progress

7 Oxfordshire Greentech The council wishes to enter into a contract to become a 
member of Oxfordshire Greentech, Oxfordshire’s network 
for low carbon and cleantech companies, to develop a 
comprehensive support package for growing the low 
carbon economy in the Vale of White Horse.
Oxfordshire Greentech is the only local business network 
of its nature therefore we are seeking an exemption from 
the council’s procurement rules as a Specialist Contract. 
The necessary paperwork has been approved by the 
council’s Procurement Officer and is currently under 
review by the Legal Team.
The membership of Oxfordshire Greentech would be led 
by the Economic Development Team. 

£2,500 April/May 
2020

Paused
(Economic 
development 
team fully 
committed 
with Covid-
19 business 
support 
activities)

P
age 15



7

Project Progress Budget Original
Proposed 
Timeline 
(March 
2020)

Status

8 General public information on the 
Climate Emergency. 

A quotation for this work has been received from 
Bioregional to be delivered as part of the One Planet 
Oxfordshire project, using match funding from the KR 
Foundation. The KR Foundation is a not for profit grant 
giving body that awards grants to address the root 
causes of climate change and environmental 
degradation.

As the project has attracted 50 per cent match funding, 
we are
seeking an exemption from the council’s procurement 
rules as a Specialist Contract. The necessary paperwork 
is being completed.

£1,000 May/June 
2020

In progress

Ongoing projects

9 Grounds Maintenance and Public Toilet 
Cleaning services

Feedback has been provided to the Technical Services 
Team relating to the potential insourcing of these 
services.

Existing 
resources

Ongoing In progress

10 Crowmarsh offices South Oxfordshire District Council Project; South 
Oxfordshire District Council is engaging with the Greater 
South East Energy Hub (GSEEH) to review the plans for 
the new council offices and identify any funding 
opportunities. 
GSEEH and the Public Sector Energy Efficiency team 
within the Government department BEIS are also keen to 
promote this as a Flagship Public Sector Estate Project, 
including to other countries as part of COP 20, the United 
Nations Climate Change Conference.

Existing 
resources

Ongoing In progress

P
age 16



8

Project Progress Budget Original
Proposed 
Timeline 
(March 
2020)

Status

11 Oxfordshire Electric Vehicle 
Infrastructure Strategy

The Oxfordshire Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Strategy 
Project Board met on 2 April 2020 and agreed the project 
Scope and Vision document, and Governance and Terms 
of Reference. 

Existing 
resources

Ongoing In progress

12 Park and Charge This project aims to ensure that those people who live in 
houses with no access to off street parking have access 
to electric vehicle charging points. Hubs are being 
established within suitable car parks, both owned by the 
district council and by other organisations.  
The Technical Services Team have identified a number 
of our car parks suitable for this project. A pilot car park in 
Cherwell district will test out the Oxfordshire-wide project.  
Installation of this pilot is planned for July 2020. Once a 
short evaluation has been undertaken, car parks through 
the district will have EV chargers installed over the next 
nine to 12 months.

Innovate UK 
funding

Ongoing In progress

P
age 17



9

Project Progress Budget Original
Proposed 
Timeline 
(March 
2020)

Status

13 Planning Design Guide This project is being led by the Specialist Planning team; 
a GW1 form for the project has been submitted to SMT 
and approved, a GW2 form will be submitted mid-June. It 
is anticipated that this project will have an 18-month 
timeline, with delivery of the project being in September 
2021. It is suggested that a CEAC Task and Finish Group 
session is held to support the establishment of the 
guide’s principles in respect of addressing the climate 
emergency, before a draft of the guide is reviewed at a 
future CEAC meeting.  Further, Planning Policy have 
produced two documents that outline current planning 
policies that seek to address climate change, and these 
are being reviewed by Specialist Officers within the 
planning team and Heather Saunders in order to identify 
where the gaps may be.   

Existing 
resources

Ongoing In progress

Communications and Engagement

P
age 18



10

Project Progress Budget Original
Proposed 
Timeline 
(March 
2020)

Status

14 Engagement with residents, parish 
councils and community groups

Support town councils in delivering 
Climate Emergency plans and projects

Residents’ survey on climate change

In January we wrote to parish councils and community 
groups informing them of our Climate Emergency work 
and invited them to respond with any suggestions on how 
we can work together to help tackle climate change. We 
also approached residents as part of the Turn It Off 
campaign flier sent out with the annual council tax. 
Twenty-three responses have so far been received. 
As the information for residents accompanied the Turn It 
Off campaign, there was a focus on transport related 
themes in the responses, including requests for more 
electric vehicle charge points and safe cycle lanes. 
Another key theme was the request for solar panels on all 
new buildings, as well as heat pumps where appropriate.

Existing 
resources

2019/20 
budget

Existing 
resources 
(scoping of 
survey 
options)

Review 
March/April 
2020

Paused – 
Towns, 
Parishes 
and 
community 
groups 
directly 
supporting 
Covid-19 
efforts

Consultations

15 Oxfordshire Pension Fund Consultation 
on Investment Strategy Statement

Councillors were invited to a Climate Change Policy 
Workshop held by the Oxfordshire Pension Fund back in 
November 2019. 
Oxfordshire County Council have now commenced a 
consultation on the Oxfordshire Pension Fund Investment 
Strategy Statement including Climate Change Policy. On 
8 April this consultation was circulated to councillors for 
their comments and responses were due by Friday 15 
May 2020.

Existing 
resources

Initiated 
externally

In progress

Further work

P
age 19



11

Project Progress Budget Original
Proposed 
Timeline 
(March 
2020)

Status

16 Recruit Climate Change Lead The 2020/21 budget for the Climate Emergency includes 
the provision of a Climate Change Lead post for 12 
months, shared jointly with South Oxfordshire. A job 
evaluation has been requested for this post. 

£31,798 March 2020 Ongoing 
(Job 
evaluation 
and SMT 
approval 
required 
before being 
advertised) 

17 Launch work programme Internal ‘low key’ launch of year one work programme 
through a workshop/session with internal stakeholders

Existing 
resources

April 2020 Paused

18 Electric pool vehicles for staff business 
travel. Initial pilot for testing and 
evaluation

A Gateway 1 form will be drafted to initiate this project £5,000 Initiation 
(GW1) April 
2020

Delivery 
March 2021

Initiation 
scheduled to 
start Q1, 
year 
2020/21

19 Low carbon council estate work package 
including energy saving opportunities 
and renewable energy in council 
buildings

An Invitation to Quote and project specification will be 
drafted to initiate this project

£6,780 Procurement 
initiation 
April/May 
2020

Scheduled 
to start Q1 

20 Energy efficient lighting at the Beacon £5,000 was allocated in 2019/20 for lighting upgrades at 
the Beacon. This project has been delayed due to closure 
of the building.

2019/20 
budget

March 2020 Paused

21 Community Climate Initiatives grant 
scheme

On 12 February the council agreed to allocate £50,000 to 
a new grant scheme to support community initiatives to 
help tackle climate change.

£50,000 tbc Paused

22 Taxi idling Liaise with Licensing Team to explore monitoring 
schemes which target taxi idling

Not yet 
available

Initiate 
March/April 
2020

Paused

P
age 20



12

Project Progress Budget Original
Proposed 
Timeline 
(March 
2020)

Status

23 Council reports Council reporting and decision-making templates to 
include climate and biodiversity impacts section

Existing 
resources

April 2020 Paused – 
Democratic 
Services 
directly 
supporting 
establishing 
virtual 
meeting 
protocols

24 Biodiversity theme projects Specialist Planning Officer to provide project plan Existing 
resources

Initiation 
April 2020

Delivery 
March 2021

Paused

25 Community Action Groups Offer to work with interested Community Action Groups 
(CAGs)

Not yet 
available

April 2020 Paused – 
Directly 
supporting 
Covid-19 
efforts 

26 Vale Vision Creation of a vision for a future low carbon Vale of White 
Horse including mapping the Vale Climate Emergency 
Work Programme onto the vision and carrying out a gap 
analysis. 

£2,300 May 2020 Paused

27 Policy and Strategy review Internal review of existing Council polices and strategies 
to embed the climate emergency

Existing 
resources

May/June 
2020

Paused

28 Conference Full day conference for officers and members on the 
subject of climate change; a CEAC task and finish group 
was held 17 January 2020 to discuss the desired 
outcomes for the event and capture speaker/subject 
ideas from South and Vale CEAC members

2019/20 
budget

June 2020 Paused

P
age 21



13

Project Progress Budget Original
Proposed 
Timeline 
(March 
2020)

Status

29 Officer training Training for officers on South Oxfordshire’s target and 
work to address the climate emergency

2019/20 
budget

Initiation 
August 2020

Delivery 
October 
2020

Scheduled 
Q2 

30 Cosy Homes (Oxfordshire retrofitting 
scheme)

Officers to review the scheme and assess referral 
confidence prior to promotion of the Cosy Homes scheme

Existing 
resources

September 
2020

Scheduled 
Q2 

31 Single use plastic

Plant based diets

‘Single-use plastic free’ pledge and action plan

Promotion of low carbon (plant based) diets within council 
facilities and buildings, and action plan

£2,250

£2,250

One project 
in October 
2020 and 
one in 
January 
2021

Scheduled 
Q3 and Q4 

32 Town-based energy data Provision of summary data on energy use for towns in the 
district, including maps

£3,340 October/ 
November 
2020

Scheduled 
Q3 

33 District wide emissions model Development of a model to estimate how future district-
wide carbon emissions will reduce on implementation of 
range of projects, demonstrating how South Oxfordshire 
can move towards the adopted district-wide target

£12,500 Review 
October 
2020

Scheduled 
Q3 

34 Electric vehicle hire facility Feasibility study Not yet 
available

November 
2020

Scheduled 
Q3 

Conclusion

This report gives an overview of key activities that have been progressed, and those that have been paused largely due to the Councils’ 
essential refocus on the Covid-19 response, since the most recent Climate Emergency Advisory Committee meeting on 28 January 2020.

P
age 22


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 Work programme update and the impact of the Covid-19 response on progress.

